SUMMARY OF MODIFICATIONS

PRINCE GEORGE'S FIRE OFFICIALS (FIRE MAJORS) SALARY SCHEDULE F-O

FISCAL YEARS 2025 & 2026

The following is a summary of modifications to the wages and benefits for the Prince George's Fire Officials, Salary Schedule F-O, for Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026.

2. MIN-MAX SYSTEM

NOTE: Effective June 5, 1990, the Chief Administrative Officer autholized Deputy Directors (Lieutenant Colonels) and the Director (Fire Chief) to receive all of the benefits of this Salary Schedule F-O, except payment of wages under this Salary Schedule. <u>Lieutenant Colonels m1d</u> the Chief are, therefore, paid wages at the Deputy Director (G 35) and Director (G 38) pay grades on Salary Schedule "G". The Fire Chief will be paid at the G-39 rate and the Deputy Fire Chief(s) will be paid at the G-36 rate.

3. MERIT INCREASES

- A. Employees who are eligible to receive a merit increase during the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 (i.e. Fiscal Year 2025), will receive that merit increase on their hire anniversary date in FY 2025.
- B. Employees who are eligible to receive a merit increase during the period from July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 (i.e. Fiscal Year 2026), will receive that merit increase on their hire anniversary date in FY 2026.

4. <u>COST OF LIVING</u>

- A. Effective on April 6, 2025, employees covered by this Agreement will receive a two and three-quarters percent (2.75%) increase in their hourly rate of pay.
- B. Effective on April 5, 2026, employees covered by this Agreement will receive a two and one- half percent (2.5%) increase in their hourly rate of pay.

8.1 <u>EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY</u>

Fire Officials shall receive an educational incentive pay of two hundred dollars (\$200) per pay period for a graduate degree at the master's level or higher in any one of the following disciplines: Public Safety Administration/Management; Business/Public Administration/Management; Disaster or Emergency Management; Emergency Medical, Healthcare Administration or Public Health; or Organizational Leadership/Management. The graduate degree must have been achieved on the employee's own time and at their own

expense. This educational incentive pay shall be considered a bonus paid biweekly and is not considered part of the employee's base rate of pay.

8.2. PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIAL INCENTIVES

Fire Officials shall receive a credential incentive pay of fifty dollars (\$50) per pay period per professional credential by the Center for Public Safety Excellence up to a maximum of two (2) credential designations. Professional credential designations must be one of the following: Chief Fire Officer (CFO), Chief Emergency Medical Services Officer (CEMSO), Chief Training Officer (CTO), or Fire Marshal (FM). This credential incentive pay shall be considered a bonus paid biweekly and is not considered part of the employee's base rate of pay. The employee must achieve and renew the credential designation(s) at their own expense.

11. HOLD HARMLESS BENEFIT CALCULATION

For any employee covered by this Salary Schedule who retires during the period from **July 1**, **2024 through June 30**, **2026**, "Average Annual Compensation," as that tenn is defined in the Pension Plan, will be calculated as if the employee had received all merit steps in Fiscal Years **2016 through 2026** on his/her anniversary date for the applicable merit increase that the employee otherwise would have been eligible to receive.

15. EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY

Only those employees 1. who are receiving Educational Incentive Pay (EIP) as of June 28, 1980, shall be eligible to continue receiving EIP. In addition, no employee shall receive biv1eekly EIP in excess of the total dollar amount of EIP received for the pay period ending June 28, 1980. Effective July 1, 1988, the definition of compensation as set forth in Section 1 of the Fire Service Pension Plan, as revised and restated effective July 1, 1983, is amended to include Educational Incentive Pay for retirement pension benefit purposes only.

21. DEATH f.L.\\ffi DISABILITY P,A ..Y\\ilents MEDICAL PRESUMPTIONS

- A. Any condition or impainment of health of any person employed by Prince George's County, Maryland, as a Firefighter, Paramedic or Emergency Response Technician in the classification of a Fire Official (Fire Majors) caused by lung disease, heart disease, or hypertension or cancer resulting in total or partial disability or death, shall be presumed to be a service-com1ected disability and to have been suffered in the line of duty and as a result of his/her employment.
- B. Any condition or impairment of health suffered by an employee covered by this agreement and who is also a vested participant of the Prince George's County Fire Service Pension Plan caused by leukemia, prostate cancer, rectal cancer, throat cancer, multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, brain cancer, testicular cancer, bladder cancer, kidney cancer, renal cell cancer, or breast cancer resulting in total or partial disability or death, shall be presumed to be a service-connected disability and to have been suffered in the line of duty and as a result of their employment.

- C. Any such employee whose disability results from a condition or impainment of health caused by lung disease, heart disease, hypeliension or cancer leukemia, prostate cancer, rectal cancer, throat cancer, multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, brain cancer, testicular cancer, bladder cancer, kidney cancer, renal cell cancer, or breast cancer shall receive such benefits as the employee may be entitled to under any existing or hereinafter created retirement or employee benefit system.
- D. It is the intention of this Section for any such County employee who suffers from a condition or impaim1ent of health caused by lung disease, heaii disease, hypertension er cancer leukemia, prostate cancer, rectal cancer, throat cancer, multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, brain cancer, testicular cancer, bladder cancer, kidney cancer, renal cell cancer, or breast cancer to receive full service-connected disability benefits from ai1y retirement or employee benefit system unless evidence is produced which shall demonstrate to a reasonable degree of medical certainty that the employee's impainment of health or disability is not related to his/her employment.
- E. This Section shall apply to all pending claims for service-com1ected disability benefits irrespective of the time when the condition or impairment of health shall have first become manifested.

F.

Employees who die in the line of duty shall be **posthumously** promoted to their next raltle

SALARY SCHEDULE F-O SCHEDULE OF PAY GRADES FIRE OFFICIALS (FIRE MAJORS) PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY, MARYLAND

EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2026

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	1.	SCHEDULED PAY RATES	1
	2.	MIN-MAX SYSTEM	2
	3.	MERIT INCREASES	4
	4.	COST OF LIVING	4
	5.	WORKWEEK	4
	6.	DESIGNATION OF MEAL PERIODS	4
	7.	LEAVE PROVISIONS	5
	8.	INCENTIVE AWARDS	8
	8.1	EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY	8
	8.2	PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIAL INCENTIVES	8
	9.	UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE	9
	10.	RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS	9
	11.	HOLD HARMLESS BENEFIT CALCULATION	9
	12.	PRE-RETIREMENT SURVIVOR ANNUITY	9
	1'3.	UNIFORMS	9
	14.	CLOTHING ALLOWANCE	9
	15.	PHYSICAL TRAINING SUPPLEMENT	10
	16.	TRAINING CERTIFICATION PAY	10
	17.	GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE	10
	18.	LIFE INSURANCE UNDER THE BENEFLEX PROGRAM	11
-9	9.	MEBie:A:C PRE-S-BMPTI0N-S	<u>1</u> -
	20.	SOCIAL SECURITY	13
	21.	WORKERS' COMPENSATION	13
	22.	PAY PLAN POLICY STATEMENT	13
	23.	MILITARY LEAVE	13

1. SCHEDULED PAY RATES

SALARY SCHEDULE F-O SCHEDULE OF PAY GRADES - FIRE OFFICIALS PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY MARYLAND EFFECTIVE APRIL 6, 2025 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 2.75%

GRADE	MINIMUM	<u>MAXIMUM</u>
Y07 (Major)		
HOURLY	41.8885	99.9191
BIWEEKLY	3351.08	7993.53
ANNUAL	87,128	207,832

The Minimum and Maximum hourly rates are the March 24, 2024 rates multiplied by 1.0275. For administrative purposes, the hourly rates are the controlling rates. Biweekly rates are hourly rates multiplied by 80. Annual rates are the hourly rates multiplied by 2,080 and rounded to the nearest dollar.

SALARY SCHEDULE F-O SCHEDULE OF PAY GRADES - FIRE OFFICIALS PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY MARYLAND EFFECTIVE APRIL 5, 2026 COST OF LIVING ADJUSTMENT 2.5%

<u>GRADE</u>	MINIMUM	MAXIMUM
Y07 (Major)		
HOURLY	42.9357	102.4171
BIWEEKLY	3434.86	8193.37
ANNUAL	89,306	213,028

The Minimum and Maximum hourly rates are the April 6, 2025 hourly rates multiplied by 1.025. For administrative purposes, the hourly rates are the controlling rates. Biweekly rates are hourly rates multiplied by 80. Amrnal rates are the hourly rates multiplied by 2,080 and rounded to the nearest dollar.

2. MIN-MAX SYSTEM

NOTE: Effective June 5, 1990, the Chief Administrative Officer authorized Deputy Directors (Lieutenant Colonels) and the Director (Fire Chief) to receive all of the benefits of this Salary Schedule F-O, except payment of wages under this Salary Schedule. The Fire Chief will be paid at the G-39 rate and the Deputy Fire Chief(s) will be paid at the G-36 rate.

- A. Effective July 2, 1993, the "MIN-MAX" system in effect for employees covered under this Salary Schedule is governed by the following rules:
- 1. Employees covered by this Salary Schedule and hired before July 1, 1989, will keep the aimiversary dates that they held on July 1, 1989, for as long as they are continuously employed. Employees hired on or after July 1, 1989, will have as their aimiversary dates the dates of their initial appointment and those anniversary dates will not be changed while those employees are continuously employed.
- 2. Merit steps will have the value of three and one-half percent (3 1/2%). An employee will be eligible to advance to the next merit step for his/her rank on his/her aimiversary date at the rate of one (1) step per year provided that he/she receives a satisfactory performance evaluation for the preceding year.
- 3. a. Upon the granting of a three and one-half percent (3 1/2%) merit increase, an employee's salary is one percent (1%) or less from the applicable maximum rate, the employee will have his/her salary rate adjusted to the applicable maximum rate.
- b. Upon the granting of a three and one-half percent (3 1/2%) merit increase, an employee's salary rate is greater than one percent (1%) but less than three and one-half percent (3 1/2%) from the applicable maximum rate, the employee upon satisfactory completion of one (1) additional year of service, will have his/her salary rate adjusted to the applicable maximum rate.
- 4. Steps for the purpose of demotions and discipline shall be at a rate of five percent (5%) and shall be governed by the Perso1mel Law.
- 5. The maximum pay rate at each grade will be increased by three and one-half percent (3 1/2%) effective July 1, 1993. An employee will be eligible to advance to the next merit step for his/her rank on his/her aimiversary date at the rate of one (1) step per year provided that he/she receives a satisfactory performance evaluation for the preceding year.
- 6. <u>Effective Jul</u> 1, <u>2018</u>, the maximum J:laJ"rates for emplo_y_e_e_s_e_o_y_e1·e_d_b_y_this--5.alal:'.1 ---- Schedule will be increased by three and one-half percent (3.5%), and employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by three and one-half percent (3.5%) on that date.

B. Modifications Effective During FY 2000 and FY 2001

1. Further, effective beginning on July 1, 1999, any employee covered by this Salary Schedule hired before July 1, 1996, who completed eighteen (18) years of actual and continuous

service as defined in the Fire Pension Plan but who is not at the step for his/her rank on the Min-Max System which reflects the completion of eighteen (18) years of service will be placed at that step on the date which marks the completion of his/her eighteenth (18th) year of service, provided, however, that the resulting rate of pay may not exceed the maximum step for the employee's rank.

- 2. Beginning in Fiscal Year 2000, any employee, who completes his/her fifth (5th) year of service as an employee covered by this Salary Schedule and is otherwise eligible to receive a merit increase, will receive a merit increase of four and one-half percent (4 1/2%) rather than tlu-ee and one-half percent (3 1/2%) during that fiscal year. During Fiscal Year 2000, an employee covered by this Salary Schedule who had already completed his/her fifth (5th) year of service as an employee during a previous fiscal year, will if he/she is otherwise eligible to receive a merit increase receive a merit increase of four and one-half percent (4 1/2%) rather than three and one-half percent (3 1/2%).
- 3. Effective the first full pay period beginning on or after July 1, 2000, the maximum pay rates for employees covered by this Salary Schedule will be increased by two and one-half percent (2 1/2%), and only employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) on that date.

C. Modifications Effective During FY 2005

Effective the first full pay period beginning on or after January 1, 2005, the maximum pay rates for employees covered by this Salary Schedule will be increase by two and one-half percent (2 1/2%), and only employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) on that date.

D. Modifications Effective During FY 2006 and FY 2007

Effective the first full pay period beginning on or after January 1, 2006, the maximum pay rates for employees covered by the Salary Schedule will be increased by two and one-half percent (2 1/2%), and only employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) on that date.

Effective the first full pay period beginning on or after July 1, 2006, all employees will be moved to the new Y-Scale. Employees will be placed on the Y-Scale in accordance with their current salaries.

Effective July 1, 2006, any employee who reaches twenty-one (21) years of service shall receive —th:ree-percent-(--3-%-)-increase--in--pay-even--i-f-this-exceeds-the-current-maximmn--rate-for-that-grad

E. Modifications Effective During FY 2014

Effective July 1, 2013, the maximum pay rates for employees covered by the Salary Schedule will be increased by seven and one-half percent (7.5%).

F. Modifications Effective During FY 2017 and FY 2018

Effective July 1, 2017, the maximum rates are the July **1**, 2017 Battalion Chief (Y06) Certification Maximum rates multiplied by 104%.

G. <u>Modifications Effective During FY 2022</u>

Effective July 1, 2021, the maximum pay rates for employees covered by this Salary Schedule will be increased by three and one-half percent (3.5%), and employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by three and one-half percent (3.5%) on that date.

H. Modifications Effective FY 2023 and FY 2024

Effective July 1, 2022, the n1aximum pay rates for employees covered by this Salary Schedule will be increased by tlu-ee and one-half percent (3.5%), and employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by tlu-ee and one-half percent (3.5%) on that date.

Effective July 1, 2022, the maximum pay rates for employees covered by this Salary Schedule will be increased by tlu-ee and one-half percent (3.5%), and employees who are at maximum on that date will have their salaries raised by three and one-half percent (3.5%) on that date.

3. MERIT INCREASES

- A. Employees who are eligible to receive a merit increase during the period from July 1, 2024 tlu·ough June 30, 2025 (i.e. Fiscal Year 2025), will receive that merit increase on their hire aimiversary date in FY 2025.
- B. Employees who are eligible to receive a merit increase during the period from July 1, 2025 tlu-ough June 30, 2026 (i.e. Fiscal Year 2026), will receive that merit increase on their hire anniversary date in FY 2026.

4. COST OF LIVING

- A. Effective on April 6, 2025, employees covered by this Agreement will receive a two and tlu-ee-quarters percent (2.75%) increase in their hourly rate of pay.
- B. Effective on April 5, 2026, employees covered by this Agreement will receive a two and one- half percent (2.5%) increase in their hourly rate of pay.

5. WORKWEEK

The workweek is the seven (7) consecutive pay period commencing at 12:01 a.m. Sunday, and ending the following Saturday at midnight. The standard number of hours in the workweek is forty (40) productive hours.

6. DESIGNATION OF MEAL PERIODS

Any employee who works five (5) or more hours in any workday shall receive an unpaid one- half (1/2) hour meal period in addition to the forty (40) productive hours.

7. LEAVE PROVISIONS

A. Sick Leave

- 1. Sick leave may be accumulated from year to year but is not reimbursable if County service ends before such accumulated leave is used, except as specified below in paragraph D.
- 2. All full-time employees earn four and one-half (4 1/2) hours of sick leave each pay period with a periodic adjustment to ensure that each employee earns fifteen (15) days of sick leave each leave year through the duration of County service. Each such day shall constitute eight (8) hours.
- 3. Employees who work on a year-round part-time basis for forty (40) or more hours per pay period shall accrue sick leave in proportion to the hours worked during each pay period.

B. Annual Leave

1. Full-time employees shall earn amrnal leave on the following basis:

Zero (0) tlu·ough tlu·ee (3) years of Four (4) hours per pay period. service.

Four (4) tlu·ough fifteen (15)
years of service.

Six (6) hours per pay period with periodic adjustments to ensure that each employee

earns twenty (20) days.

After fifteen (15) years of Eight (8) hours per pay period.

Service and above

2. Employees who work on a year-round part-time basis for forty (40) or more hours per pay period shall earn annual leave in propoliion to the hours worked during each pay period.

C. Amrnal Leave: Carryover and Lump Sum Payment

1. A maximum of tlu-ee hundred sixty (360) hours of accumulated ammal leave earned beginning with the first pay period in the 1997 leave year (i.e., January 5, 1997) may be carried over from one leave year to the next by an employee (i.e., new annual leave).

a. <u>otwithstanding the provisions</u> of <u>Section</u> 16=ZT0 [d) oft 1e <u>ersonnel</u> Law, a maximum of 440 hours of accumulated annual leave may be can-ied over from leave year 2021 into leave year 2022. Unless amended by future legislation, the maximum amount of ammal leave that may be carried over from leave year 2022 into leave year 2023 shall revert back to 360 hours. This modified benefit shall sunset automatically upon its implementation.

^{2.} An employee shall be allowed to carry over ammal leave earned as of the last full pay

period in leave year 1996 (i.e., old annual leave) even if such accumulated amount is in excess of the maximum allowed in the paragraph above or in excess of the one hundred thirty (130) days maximum formerly allowed.

- 3. Effective begi1ming with the 1997 leave year, new annual leave in excess of the three hundred sixty (360) hours limit at the end of a leave year will automatically convert to new sick leave. The Fire Pension Plan shall be amended to provide that new sick leave converted from mulal leave under this subparagraph, up to a combined total for each officer of one thousand fo1iy (1,040) hours of annual leave and this new sick leave, may be used to purchase pension credit at the rate of forty (40) hours for each month of pension credit.
- 4. An employee covered by this Salary Schedule who terminates employment shall receive a lump sum cash payment for the annual leave balance credit accumulated tlu-ough the last full pay period immediately prior to the employee's separation. Employees who qualify may elect to purchase additional service credit as provided in Section 7.9 of the International Association of Fire Fighters (Local 1619) Agreement.

D. <u>Sick and Annual Leave Disposition Upon Separation</u>

- 1. Effective begi1ming with the 1997 leave year (i.e. January 5, 1997), the aimual and sick leave balances accumulated by an employee shall, upon the employee's separation from employment be liquidated in the following maimer:
- a. The employee may elect to retain all or any p01iion of the employee's sick and annual leave balances credited to the employee's leave record for the period of time equal to the employee's eligibility for reappointment as determined in accordance with Section 16-148 (a) (8).
- b. The employee may elect to apply all or any portion of the employee's sick and ammal leave balances to employment elsewhere, provided another employer has agreed to accept accumulated sick or annual leave balances for credit on behalf of the employee.
- c. The employee may elect to receive cash payment for all or any portion of the employee's annual leave balance in an amount equal to the total number of unused annual leave hours multiplied by the employee's final base hourly rate of pay, subject to the following:
- 1. Upon separation from employment, employees who participate in the pension plan may elect to receive a cash payment for the remainder of their annual leave hours that were ea-c-ct m 1-u'lated as of the end of flret990 leave year or for up to tlu-ee hundred sixty(300) hours of accumulated ammal leave, whichever is greater. Any remaining amount would be applied toward service credit in the pension plan as provided in the Fire Pension Plan.
 - 2. Notwithstanding subparagraph c.1., inunediately above, upon separation from employment because of service-related disability, an employee with less than twenty (20) years of service will be permitted to receive payment for all ammal leave (old and new).
 - d. Upon separation from employment for non-disciplinary reasons (including but not

limited to retirement, disability and death), eligible employees will receive cash payment for unused sick leave accumulated as of the end of the 1996 leave year at two and one-half percent (2 1/2%) for each year of service (through the date of separation) at the employee's base hourly rate of pay as of the date of separation but not to exceed the highest rate of pay of a Fire Major in January, 2001 - that is, \$48.3557 per hour. However, if a firefighter with less than twenty (20) years of actual service terminates employment as a result of death or disability, he/she shall receive a fifty percent (50%) cash-out of unused accumulated sick leave as of the end of the 1996 leave year.

- e. For individuals who participate in the pension plan, sick leave earned beginning with the 1997 leave year (i.e., new sick leave) is not subject to cash payment upon separation, but is available to purchase service credit under the pension plan as provided in the Fire Pension Plan. However, officers with less than twenty (20) years of service who terminate employment because of service com1ected disability and officers whose employment terminates because of death are eligible for cash payment for all sick leave earned, including sick leave earned beginning with the 1997 leave year, at the rates set forth in paragraph d., immediately above.
- f. Notwithstanding any provision in this section to the contrary, an employee who is involuntarily separated from employment with the County for disciplinary reasons is not entitled to any payment for unused sick leave.

E. <u>Personal Leave</u>

Tlu-ee (3) paid personal leave days per leave year including the four (4) hours in lieu of the former General Election Day Holiday shall be granted to each employee eligible for annual leave. A personal leave day consists of eight (8) hours and shall be requested and approved in advance of use. There shall be no accumulation of personal leave days and unused personal leave shall be forfeited at the end of the leave year or upon termination of employment.

F. Bereavement Leave

Members of the Unit shall be entitled to use accumulated sick leave for the purpose of bereavement when a death occurs in a member's family. A maximum amount of sick leave used shall not normally exceed tlu·ee (3) working days. The term "family" shall mean and include the member's spouse, child, sister, brother, parent, grandparent, mother and father in-law, and aunt or uncle. Leave needed beyond tluee (3) days because of travel distance, religious requirements or other extenuating circumstances may be extended on a case-by-case basis, but in no instance shall such bereavement leave be approved beyond seven (7) working days. The first tluee (3) days of bereavement leave taken upon the death of a parent, spouse or child will be administrative leave rather than sick leave.

G. Holiday Leave and Holiday Pay

1. For the purpose of holiday leave, the following shall be designated as holidays under the scope of this resolution: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday, Presidential Inauguration Day, President's Day, Fire Fighter Recognition Day (Friday before the observance of Memorial Day), Memorial Day, Juneteenth Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Native

American Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day, County Employees Appreciation Day (Friday following Thanksgiving Day) and Christmas Day.

If an employee is mandated by the Fire Chief to work on a designated holiday, he/she shall be paid at the rate of two (2) times his/her regular rate of pay for all hours worked on the holiday.

2. The Clu·istmas Day holiday shall apply to all employees who work during the thi1iy-six (36) hour period begi1ming at 1900 hours on December 24, and the New Year's Day holiday shall apply to all employees who work during the twenty-four (24) hour period begi1ming at 1900 hours on December 31.

H. Administration of Leave

The provisions governing the administration of the above types of leave as well as other types of leave (holiday, administrative, military, military leave without pay, family and medical leave, disability, leave without pay, absence without leave, compensatory) are specified in Division 17 of the Pers01mel Law and applicable Administrative Procedures.

8. INCENTIVE AWARDS

To the extent that funds have been appropriated for such purpose, employees may be granted incentive awards, subject to the provisions of Section 16-209 of the Personnel Law.

8.1 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY

Fire Officials shall receive an educational incentive pay of two hundred dollars (\$200) per pay period for a graduate degree at the master's level or higher in any one of the following disciplines: Public Safety Administration/Management; Business/Public Administration/Management; Disaster or Emergency Management; Emergency Medical, Healthcare Administration or Public Health; or Organizational Leadership/Management. The graduate degree must have been achieved on the employee's own time and at their own expense. This educational incentive pay shall be considered a bonus paid biweekly and is not considered part of the employee's base rate of pay.

8.2 PROFESSIONAL CREDENTIAL INCENTIVES

Fire Officials shall receive a credential incentive pay of fifty dollars (\$50) per pay period per professional-credential by the-eenter-for-Public-Safety-E-xceUence up-to-a maximmn-oftwo (2) credential designations. Professional credential designations must be one of the following: Chief Fire Officer (CFO), Chief Emergency Medical Services Officer (CEMSO), Chief Training Officer (CTO), or Fire Marshal (FM). This credential incentive pay shall be considered a bonus paid biweekly and is not considered part of the employee's base rate of pay. The employee must achieve and renew the credential designation(s) at their own expense.

9. UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

Employees who are separated from County service may be entitled to unemployment compensation provided they meet eligibility requirements by Federal and/or State regulations.

10. RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

The following modifications will be effective July 1, 2013:

- A. Employees paid in accordance with this Salary Schedule, who participate in the Fire Pension Plan (FPP), and who were hired before July 1, 2008, shall pay retirement contributions to the FPP at the rate of six percent (6%) of base salary. The County's contribution rate shall be that amount as established from time to time by the FPP. Employee contributions shall be made through payroll deductions. If changes/improvements in retirement benefits are made, then contributions may be adjusted accordingly.
- B. Employees hired after July1, 2008, shall contribute ten percent (10%) of base payroll to the retirement trust fund (i.e. FPP).
- C. Effective January 1, 2019, employees hired prior to July 1, 2008 shall contribute seven percent (7%) of base payroll to the retirement trust fund.

11. HOLD HARMLESS BENEFIT CALCULATION

For any employee covered by this Salary Schedule who retires during the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2026, "Average Annual Compensation," as that term is defined in the Pension Plan, will be calculated as if the employee had received all merit steps in Fiscal Years 2016 through 2026 on his/her anniversary date for the applicable merit increase that the employee otherwise would have been eligible to receive.

12. PRE-RETIREMENT SURVIVOR ANNUITY

Effective July 1, 2001, the spouse of any participant with fifteen (15) or more but less than twenty (20) years of service that dies while still an active employee, will receive a survivor annuity benefit. The participant's spouse shall receive a pension equal to fifty percent (50%) of the pension the participant would have received had the participant deferred retirement until his/her normal retirement date and elected a joint and survivor annuity.

13. <u>UNIFORMS</u>

Required uniforms, with the exception of dress shoes, shall be provided by the County.

14. CLOTHING ALLOWANCE

Effective Fiscal Year 2017, employees will receive an annual clothing allowance of one thousand two hundred seventy dollars (\$1,270.00) which will be paid in one (1) installment in July. This clothing allowance is not considered part of the employee's base pay.

15. PHYSICAL TRAINING SUPPLEMENT

Employees covered by this Salary Schedule shall receive a Physical Training Supplement of two hundred twenty-five dollars (\$225.00) per year. This physical training supplement is not considered part of the employees' base pay, and will be paid in one (1) installment in July of each fiscal year.

16. TRAINING CERTIFICATION PAY

- A. Effective the first full pay period beginning on or after July 1, 2006, employees covered by this Salary Schedule who were hired before January 1, 1999 will receive a training certification pay of one hundred and twenty dollars (\$120.00) per pay period and employees who were hired on or after January 1, 1999 will receive a training certification pay of forty-five dollars (\$45.00) per pay period.
- B. Employees are required to attend, successfully complete and maintain various training recelification pursuant to the required regulation, law and/or standards, on their own time and at no further expense to the County. The County will provide the training recelification programs at various times and locations and at no additional cost to the employees. For the purpose of this section, this mandated training recelification is as follows:
 - Emergency Medical Technician Basic Hours set by the State
 - Cardio-Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)-Four (4) Hours
 - Respiratory Fit Testing
 - Annual Medical Physical Four (4) Hours
 - Infectious Control Refresher Four (4) Hours
 - Four (4) hours of an additional training that is either mandated by a Federal or State regulation(s) or ordered by the Fire Chief.
- C. Employees are required to successfully complete and maintain various training recertification pursuant to the required regulation, law and/or standards. The Department will provide for the employees to complete the following training recertification programs during the employee's normal duty hours. For the purpose of this section, this mandated training recertification is as follows:
 - Respiratory Protection Training- Four (4) Hours
 - <u>Driver Training and Improvement Refresher- Four</u> (4) Hours
 - Hazardous Material Refresher- Four (4) Hours

17. GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE

A. The County shall contribute seventy- percent (70%) to the cost of the County's preferred provider option insurance plan for any employee who elects to participate in the program. Participating employees shall contribute the remaining thirty percent (30%). Officers who retire on or after January 1, 2018 will not benefit from the Calendar Year 2017 cap.

- B. The County shall contribute seventy-five percent (75%) to the cost of a prepaid group health plan or Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) for any employee who elects to participate in the program. Participating employees shall contribute the remaining twenty-five (25%). Officers who retire on or after January 1, 2018 will not benefit from the Calendar Year 2017 cap.
- C. Employees who provide proof of other medical coverage may choose to receive a credit instead of emolling in a medical plan with the County.
- D. The County shall contribute eighty-five percent (85%) to the County's deductible prescription drug and vision care programs for any employee who elects to pm1icipate in either program. The participating employee shall contribute the remaining fifteen percent (15%). Employees who choose not to enroll in the Prescription Drug Plan may choose to receive a credit instead.
- E. Two Dental Plans are available to employees, the cost of which is paid by the employee if the employee elects to enroll in either of the plans.
- F. Employees may choose to enroll in a Long-Term Disability Program offering fifty percent (50%) or sixty percent (60%) of annual salary up to normal social security retirement age. Employees will pay the full cost of whichever option is chosen.
- G. Employees may contribute up to the maximum allowable amount, as defined by the Internal Revenue Service, in a dependent flexible spending account and a medical flexible spending account.

18. LIFE INSURANCE UNDER THE BENEFLEX PROGRAM

- A. The County will provide employees covered by this Agreement with the County basic group term life insurance policy with a benefit of two (2) times the employee's ammal salary (rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00)). Employees may choose to increase their life insurance from one (1) to four (4) times their annual salary up to a total of one million dollars (\$1,000,000), including the base amount provided by the County. Employees will pay for the increased coverage at rates based on their age and amount of coverage. Employees may choose to reduce their life insurance to one (1) times their mmual salary and receive a credit.
- B. Effective July 1, 1989, the County will provide a supplemental life insurance benefit to an employee covered by this Salary Schedule who retires until age sixty (60) in an amount equal to the difference between the face value of his/her County basic term life insurance at the date of retirement and the-cleefeasecl-i-nsurecl-value of his/hel G-eunt-y basic term l-ife-i-nsurance-aftel date of retirement. When the retiree attains age sixty (60), the retiree's total life insurance benefit shall be reduced by fifteen percent (15%) of the original face value per year, to a residual of twenty-five percent (25%) by reducing the supplemental life insurance benefit by twenty percent (20%) on the first (1st) day of the calendar month coinciding with or next following the date of his/her attainment of age sixty (60). On each of the next four (4) anniversaries the supplemental life insurance benefit will be reduced by the same dollar amount. The total combined life insurance benefit which the County will provide pursuant to the foregoing under the County's basic term life insurance policy and the supplemental life insurance policy will equal two (2)

times the employee's annual salary (rounded to the nearest \$1,000.00) but not to exceed one hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$150,000.00) or two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000.00) effective July 1, 1994.

C. The accidental death insurance policy the County maintains for employees covered by this Salary Schedule shall be payable in the amount of fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00) to an employee's designated beneficiary should the employee be killed in the line of duty.

19. MEDICAL PRESUMPTIONS

- A. Any condition or impairment of health of any person employed by Prince George's County, Maryland, in the classification of a Fire Official (Fire Majors) caused by lung disease, heart disease or hypertension resulting in total or partial disability or death, shall be presumed to be a service-c01mected disability and to have been suffered in the line of duty and as a result of his/her employment.
- B. Any condition or impairment of health suffered by an employee covered by this agreement and who is also a vested participant of the Prince George's County Fire Service Pension Plan caused by leukemia, prostate cancer, rectal cancer, throat cancer, multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, brain cancer, testicular cancer, bladder cancer, kidney cancer, renal cell cancer, or breast cancer resulting in total or partial disability or death, shall be presumed to be a service-c01mected disability and to have been suffered in the line of duty and as a result of their employment.
- C. Any such employee whose disability results from a condition or impairment of health caused by lung disease, heart disease, hypertension, leukemia, prostate cancer, rectal cancer, throat cancer, multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, brain cancer, testicular cancer, bladder cancer, kidney cancer, renal cell cancer, or breast cancer shall receive such benefits as the employee may be entitled to under any existing or hereinafter created retirement or employee benefit system.
- D. It is the intention of this Section for any such County employee who suffers from a condition or impairment of health caused by lung disease, heart disease, hypeliension, leukemia, prostate cancer, rectal cancer, throat cancer, multiple myeloma, non-Hodgkin's lymphoma, brain cancer, testicular cancer, bladder cancer, kidney cancer, renal cell cancer, or breast cancer to receive full service-connected disability benefits from any retirement or employee benefit system unless evidence is produced which shall demonstrate to a reasonable degree of medical certainty that the employee's impairment of health or disability is not related to his/her-e-mflley-me-at.
 - E. This Section shall apply to all pending claims for service-connected disability benefits irrespective of the time when the condition or impairment of health shall have first become manifested.
 - F. Employees who die in the line of duty shall be posthumously promoted to their next rank.

20. SOCIAL SECURITY

- A. The County is required to comply with the Federal Insurance Contribution Act (FICA) that provides for a federal system of old-age, survivors, disability (Social Security or OASDI), and hospital (Medicare or HI) insurance. Effective January 1, 2012, each employee paid in accordance with this salary schedule shall make contributions of 4.2% to the social security fund (FICA-OASDI) up to the wage base limit of one hundred ten thousand one hundred dollars (\$110,100.00); and 1.45% to the Medicare fund (FICA-HI) on all wages paid. Employee contributions shall be made tlu ough payroll deductions.
- B. Subsequent changes in the Social Security tax rate and/or the taxable wage base as enacted tlu·ough Federal legislation shall be applied in computing Social Security contributions by the County and each employee.

21. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

The County will provide at its own cost all benefits due to an employee pursuant to the Maryland Workers' Compensation Law, Title 9 of the Maryland Labor and Employment Code Almotated.

22. PAY PLAN POLICY STATEMENT

It is the policy of the County that benefits afforded to employees in the Salary Plan are governed by the specific salary schedule to which an employee is ctmently assigned. If an employee is transferred, promoted, demoted, or in any other way moves from one salary schedule to another, any benefits unique to or expressly a function of the former salary schedule are not canied over.

23. MILITARY LEAVE

Any employee called up to active military service in response to the tenorist attacks on September 11, 2001, the resultant war on terrorism or other military action shall be eligible for the benefits set forth herein. Payment of a salary supplement equal to the difference between the employee's base rate of pay and the employee's base military rate of pay, without the exhaustion of the employee's annual, personal and compensatory leave balances. Eligibility for health care benefits to continue once the employee enters a leave without pay status with both the employer and employee contributions of the premium being paid by the County. These benefits shall expire on March 1, 2027.